MINUTES PLANNING COMMITTEE

Wednesday 24 July 2024

Councillor Roy Allan (Chair)

In Attendance: Councillor Paul Wilkinson Councillor Catherine Pope

Councillor Sandra Barnes
Councillor Stuart Bestwick
Councillor David Ellis
Councillor Andrew Ellwood
Councillor Helen Greensmith
Councillor Julie Najuk

Councillor Grahame Pope
Councillor Martin Smith
Councillor Sam Smith
Councillor Ruth Strong
Councillor Henry Wheeler
Councillor Russell Whiting

Councillor Lynda Pearson

Absent: Councillor Jane Walker

Officers in C Goodall, M Avery, N Bryan, N Osei, H Stylianou

Attendance: and L Widdowson

13 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Walker. Councillor Martin Smith attended as substitute.

14 TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 JUNE 2024

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be approved as a correct record.

15 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

The Chair declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 5 on the agenda, as he had a professional relationship with the developer. The Chair confirmed that he would withdraw from the meeting and asked Councillor Wilkinson as Vice Chair to assume the Chair for that item.

Councillor Martin Smith declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 5 on the agenda, as he was the Chair of Ravenshead Parish Council and the report stated that Section 106 monies could be transferred to the parish council in due course.

16 APPLICATION NO. 2024/0094 - TOTAL SITE, ROAD NO 3, COLWICK

The erection of industrial and warehouse units (Use Classes E(g)(iii), B2 and B8) together with access and servicing arrangements, parking, landscaping, boundary fencing and associated works.

George Dickens of Chancery Gate, the applicant, spoke in support of the application.

The Development Manager informed members of a proposed amendment to condition 7 of the report, in relation to the relocation of the bus stop and in terms of its timing, as follows:

"The proposed industrial units shall not be brought into use until an application has been submitted to Nottinghamshire County for bus-stop GEO336 to be re-located, as shown on drawing 21068-602 P05".

He then went on to introduce the report.

Members resolved to add an additional condition in respect of security for the site when it was not in operation, through the submission and approval of a site management plan. Therefore, it was agreed that based on Members' comments, the Development Manager would provide the wording for an additional condition 19 and the associated reason.

RESOLVED:

To GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION: subject to the following conditions:

Conditions

- The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date of this permission.
- The development hereby permitted shall be completed in accordance with the following drawings:
 - Unit 19 Site Access Junction Visibility J32-5783-PS-103
 - Revision B:
 - Internal Vehicle Tracking 16.5M Max Legal J32-5783-PS-113;
 - Road No.1 Site Access Junction Visibility J32-5783-PS-101 - Revision B;
 - Planning Layout North 853.19.08 Revision A;
 - Planting Layout South 853.29.09 Revision A;
 - Proposed Site Plan 21068-302 P-05;
 - Unit 19 Proposed Elevations 21068-0721 P-03;

- Units 1-6 Proposed Elevations 21068-0321 P-03;
- Units 7-11 Proposed Elevations 21068-0421 P-03;
- Units 12-15 Proposed Elevations 21068-0521 P-03;
- Units 16-18 Proposed Elevations 21068-0621 P-03;
- Units 1-6 Proposed Floor Plans 21068-0310 P-03;
- Proposed Cycle Storage 21068-305 P-01;
- Unit 19 Proposed Roof Plan 21068-0711 P-03;
- Units 16-18 Proposed Roof Plan 21068-0611 P-03;
- Unit 19 Proposed Sections 21068-0731 P-03;
- Location Plan 21068-0300 P-01;
- Units 7-11 Proposed Floor Plans 21068-0410 P-03;
- Units 12-15 Proposed Floor Plans 21068-0510 P-03;
- Units 16-18 Proposed Floor Plans 21068-0610 P-03;
- Unit 19 Proposed Floor Plan 21068-0710 P-03;
- Units 1-6 Proposed Roof Plan 21068-0311 P-03;
- Units 7-11 Proposed Roof Plan 21068-0411 P-03;
- Units 12-15 Proposed Roof Plan 21068-0511 P-03;
- Units 1-6 Proposed GA Sections 21068-0331 P-03;
- Units 7-11 Proposed GA Sections 21068-0431 P-03:
- Units 12-15 Proposed Sections 21068-0531 P-03;
- Units 16-18 Proposed Sections 21068-0631 P-03; and
- Proposed Site Sections 21068-900 P-00.
- The proposed industrial units shall not be brought into use until the parking/turning/servicing areas as shown on drawing 21068-302 P05 have been provided. The parking/turning/servicing areas shall be maintained in accordance with the approved details and shall not be used for any purpose other than the parking/turning/loading and unloading of vehicles.
- The proposed industrial units shall not be brought into use until the vehicular access points as shown on drawing 21068-302 P05 have been provided to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority.
- The proposed industrial units shall not be brought into use until the redundant vehicular crossing serving the site on Road No.1 has been permanently closed and reinstated to verge/footway to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority.
- The proposed industrial units shall not be brought into use until the site access arrangements have been constructed with provision to prevent the discharge of surface water from the access points to the public highway. The provision to prevent the discharge of surface water from the access points shall be retained for the lifetime of the development.
- 7 The proposed industrial units shall not be brought into use until bus-stop GEO336 as shown on drawing 21068-602 P05 has been provided.

- 8 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted flood risk assessment (ref 21-034-CHA Road No.3, Colwick, dated 21st December 2023) and the following mitigation measures it details:
 - Finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 20.95 metres above Ordnance Datum (AOD)
 - The proposed units shall be made to be floodable
 - There shall be a safe refuge on site and a safe access route (as per drawing document SK010-Proposed Safe Refuge Routes)

These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and subsequently in accordance with the scheme's timing/phasing arrangements. The measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout the lifetime of the development.

- Prior to any part of the permitted development being brought into use, a verification report demonstrating the completion of works set out in the approved remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted to, and approved in writing, by the local planning authority. The report shall include results of sampling and monitoring carried out in accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the site remediation criteria have been met.
- If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning authority) shall be carried out until a remediation strategy detailing how this contamination will be dealt with has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved.
- Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods shall not be carried out other than with the written consent of the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
- No drainage systems for the infiltration of surface water to the ground are permitted other than with the written consent of the local planning authority. Any proposals for such systems must be supported by an assessment of the risks to controlled waters. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
- Prior to the occupation of building(s) hereby permitted, details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority as to the position within the development of a minimum of twenty three (23) Electric Vehicle Recharging Points

(active); with infrastructure installed for Units 1-17 to benefit each from an extra point in future years (passive). The Electric Vehicle Recharging Points shall be in a prominent position on the site and shall be for the exclusive use of zero emission vehicles. The Electric Vehicle Recharging Points shall be installed prior to occupation of any part of the development and shall be thereafter maintained in the location as approved for the lifetime of the development. All EV charging points shall meet relevant safety and accessibility requirements and be clearly marked with their purpose; which should be drawn to the attention of car park users.

- The development hereby permitted shall be undertaken in strict accordance with the protection measures set out in the submitted Arboricultural Implications Report dated January 2024.
- 15 No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until a detailed surface water drainage scheme based on the principles set forward by the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and Drainage Strategy 21-034- CHA Road No.3, Colwick. 21st December 2023, I and L Consulting Ltd., has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Lead Local Flood Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to completion of the development. The scheme to be submitted shall:- Demonstrate that the development will use SuDS throughout the site as a primary means of surface water management and that design is in accordance with CIRIA C753 and NPPF Paragraph 169.- Limit the discharge generated by all rainfall events up to the 100 year plus 40% (climate change) critical rain storm to QBar rates for the developable area.- Provide detailed design (plans, network details, calculations and supporting summary documentation) in support of any surface water drainage scheme, including details on any attenuation system, the outfall arrangements and any private drainage assets. Calculations should demonstrate the performance of the designed system for a range of return periods and storm durations inclusive of the 1 in 1 year, 1 in 30 year and 1 in 100 year plus climate change return periods.- No surcharge shown in a 1 in 1 year.- No flooding shown in a 1 in 30 year.- For all exceedance to be contained within the site boundary without flooding properties in a 100 year plus 40% storm.- Evidence to demonstrate the viability (e.g Condition, Capacity and positive onward connection) of any receiving watercourse to accept and convey all surface water from the site.- Details of STW approval for connections to existing network and any adoption of site drainage infrastructure.- Evidence of approval for drainage infrastructure crossing third party land where applicable.- Provide a surface water management plan demonstrating how surface water flows will be managed during construction to ensure no

increase in flood risk off site.- Evidence of how the on-site surface water drainage systems shall be maintained and managed after completion and for the lifetime of the development to ensure long term effectiveness.

- The development shall be carried out in accordance with the Local Labour Agreement dated January 2024; received by the Local Planning Authority on 9 February 2024.
- The landscaping scheme as approved (including the trees to be planted on the public highway) shall be carried out in the first planting season following completion of the development. Any trees, shrubs or plants that die within a period of five years from the completion of each development phase, or are removed and/or become seriously damaged or diseased in that period, shall be replaced (and if necessary continue to be replaced) in the first available planting season with others of similar size and species.
- The development hereby approved shall be carried out using materials as set out in the submitted materials schedule.
- 19. Prior to the occupation of buildings hereby permitted a 'site management plan' identifying means of security for the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the approved site management plan shall be adhered to.

Reasons

- 1 In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
- 2 For the avoidance of doubt.
- In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policy LPD 61 of the Gedling Local Planning Document 2018.
- In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policy LPD 61 of the Gedling Local Planning Document 2018.
- In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policy LPD 61 of the Gedling Local Planning Document 2018.
- In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policy LPD 61 of the Gedling Local Planning Document 2018.
- 7 To promote sustainable travel.

- 8 To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants.
- To ensure that the site does not pose any further risk to the water environment by demonstrating that the requirements of the approved verification plan have been met and that remediation of the site is complete. This is in line with paragraph 180 of the NPPF.
- To ensure that the development does not contribute to, and is not put at unacceptable risk from or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution from previously unidentified contamination sources at the development site. This is in line with paragraph 180 of the NPPF.
- Piling can result in risks to water resources from, for example, mobilising contamination, drilling through different aquifers, and creating preferential pathways. Thus it should be demonstrated that any of these activities will not harm water resources in line with paragraph 180 of the NPPF.If Piling is proposed, a Piling Risk Assessment must be submitted, written in accordance with EA guidance document "Piling and Penetrative Ground Improvement Methods on Land Affected by Contamination: Guidance on Pollution Prevention. National Groundwater & Contaminated Land Centre report NC/99/73".
- To ensure that the development does not contribute to, and is not put at unacceptable risk from or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution caused by mobilised contaminants. This is in line with paragraph 180 of the NPPF.
- To ensure the development is constructed in an appropriate sustainable manner which takes into consideration air quality with in the Borough, and takes into consideration the National Planning Policy Framework and policy LPD11 of the Councils Local Plan.
- To ensure that there is no unacceptable adverse impact on trees as a result of the development hereby permitted.
- A detailed surface water management plan is required to ensure that the development is in accordance with NPPF and local planning policies. It should be ensured that all major developments have sufficient surface water management, are not at increased risk of flooding and do not increase flood risk off-site.
- To enable local people to benefit from the development in accordance with LPD 48 of the Gedling Part 2 Local Plan (2018).

- To ensure that the character of the area is respected and to comply with policies LPD18 and LPD19.
- In the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy and Policy 43 of the Gedling Local Planning Document 2018.
- To ensure the site is secure and does not encourage anti-social behaviour and to comply with guidance within the NPPF.

Reasons for Decision

The application site is within an established industrial estate and will enhance employment use on offer. The built form would respect the character of the area and amenity of adjacent users. Highway safety would be respected and parking provision is considered to be acceptable. Subject to conditions the development would be acceptable in respect of flood risk and contamination. The application is, therefore, deemed to comply with policies 1, 4 and 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy; policies LPD 3, LPD 4, LPD 7, LPD 11, LPD 32, LPD 44, LPD 48, LPD 57 and LPD 61 of the Local Planning Document and guidance within the NPPF.

Notes to Applicant

The development makes it necessary to construct/reinstate a vehicular crossing over a verge/footway of the public highway and provide public transport infrastructure. These works will take place on land that is subject to the provisions of the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and is therefore land over which you have no control. Please contact licences@viaem.co.uk to ensure the necessary licences are in place and that payment has been made to compensate for the loss of the Highway Trees prior to works commencing.

We recommend that consideration is given to the issues below. Where necessary, the advice of relevant experts should be sought.

Adequacy of rescue or evacuation arrangements

Details and adequacy of an emergency plan.

Provision of and adequacy of a temporary refuge.

Details and adequacy of flood proofing and other building level resistance and resilience measures. We strongly recommend that the LPA ensures that the resilience measures proposed are adequate in protecting the units to at least 300mm above the breach height of 22.28mAOD.

Details and calculations relating to the structural stability of buildings during a flood

Whether insurance can be gained or not

Provision of an adequate means of surface water disposal such that flood risk on and off-site isn't increased

In making our response, we have considered the risks posed to controlled waters.

The Local Authority's Environmental Health Officer must be contacted with regards to other risks, such as those posed to human health. This is particularly relevant given that the risk assessment reports were written with different planning proposals in mind.

The developer is encouraged to consider upgrading the EV charging facilities to incorporate mode 3 charging capability as this will help future proof the development and improve its sustainability. A suitable electrical socket can be provided to allow 'Mode 3' charging of an electric vehicle, allowing Smart charging of electric vehicles. All electrical circuits/installations shall comply with the electrical requirements of BS7671:2008 as well as conform to the IET code of practice on Electrical Vehicle Charging Equipment installation (2015).

The applicant is advised that all planning permissions granted on or after 16th October 2015 may be subject to the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). Full details of CIL are available on the Council's website. The proposed development has been assessed and it is the Council's view that CIL is not payable on the development hereby approved as the development type proposed is zero rated in this location.

The proposed development lies within a coal mining area which may contain unrecorded coal mining related hazards. If any coal mining feature is encountered during development, this should be reported immediately to The Coal Authority on 0845 762 6848. Further information is also available on The Coal Authority website at www.coal.decc.gov.uk.Property specific summary information on past, current and future coal mining activity can be obtained from The Coal Authority's Property Search Service on 0845 762 6848 or at www.groundstability.com

The Borough Council has worked positively and proactively with the applicant in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. During the processing of the application regular discussions took place with the applicant to address any issues that occurred.

17 APPLICATION NO. 2014/0273 - LAND AT CORNER OF LONGDALE LANE AND KIGHILL LANE, RAVENSHEAD

Councillor Allan left the meeting.

Councillor Wilkinson assumed the Chair.

Outline Planning Permission for up to 31 No. dwellings with all matters reserved.

The Community Infrastructure Levy Officer introduced the report.

Members resolved to amend condition 14 to include specific reference to tree protection fencing along the southern boundary of the site. Therefore, it was agreed that based on Members' comments, the Community Infrastructure Levy Officer would amend the condition to include that protective fencing should be erected along the southeast, southwest and northwest boundaries of the application site.

RESOLVED:

GRANTS OUTLINE PLANNING That the Borough Council PERMISSION, subject to the applicant entering into planning obligations with the Borough Council as local planning authority and with the County Council as local highway and education authority for the provision of, or contributions Affordable financial towards. Housing, Infrastructure Improvements, Open Space, Healthcare Facilities, Management Company, Local Labour Agreement and Educational Facilities; and subject to the following conditions:

Conditions

- Approval of the details of Access, Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and Scale (hereinafter called "the reserved matters") shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority before the commencement of any phase of the development.
- Application for the approval of reserved matters must be made not later than three years from the date of the outline permission and the development to which this permission relates must be begun within two years from the date of final approval of reserved matters.
- No phase of development shall commence until a Phasing Schedule has been submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in phases in accordance with the approved Phasing Schedule
- The detailed plans and particulars to be submitted as reserved matters in relation to scale shall include details of existing and proposed site levels in relation to adjacent properties. The development shall be implemented strictly in accordance with the approved details.

- No development shall commence within any phase unless or until a detailed design of the access to serve that phase has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be undertaken in accordance with details approved.
- No part of the development hereby permitted, within a phase, shall be brought into use until the visibility splays of 2.4m x 47m, serving that phase, are provided in accordance with details to be first submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The area within the visibility splays referred to in this Condition shall thereafter be kept free of all obstructions, structures or erections exceeding 0.6metres in height.
- No part of the development hereby permitted, within a phase of development, shall be brought into use until a 2.00m wide footway has been provided across the site frontage, within that phase of development, on Longdale Lane, in accordance with details to be first submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- The formal written approval of the Local Planning Authority is required prior to commencement of any development, within a phase of development, in the site curtilage with regard to parking and turning facilities, access widths, gradients, surfacing, street lighting, structures, visibility splays and drainage (hereinafter referred to as reserved matters.) The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved details.
- Details of measures to prevent the deposit of debris upon the adjacent public highway shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to any works commencing within a phase of development on site. The approved measures shall be implemented prior to any other works commencing on the phase of development.
- No part of the development hereby permitted, within a phase of development, shall be occupied until a Travel Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The Travel Plan shall set out proposals (including targets, a timetable and enforcement mechanism) to promote travel by sustainable modes which are acceptable to the local planning authority and shall include arrangements for monitoring of progress of the proposals. The Travel Plan shall be implemented strictly in accordance with the timetable set out in that plan.
- A plan showing satisfactory arrangements for refuse collection shall be submitted with the 'layout' reserved matter.

- No development shall take place, within a phase of development, until a Construction Environmental Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for: (i) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; (ii) loading and unloading of plant and materials; (iii) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; (iv) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate; (v) wheel washing facilities; (vi) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction; (vii) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from construction works.
- 13 Before development is commenced, within a phase of development, there shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority details of a surface water drainage scheme for that phase based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological hydrogeological context of the development. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed and shall be retained for the lifetime of the development. The scheme to be submitted shall demonstrate: (1) The utilisation of holding sustainable drainage techniques which incorporate at least two differing forms of SuDS treatment in accordance with Table 3.3 of CIRIA C697 'The SuDS Manual' prior to discharging from the site; (2) The limitation of surface water run-off to the equivalent Greenfield runoff rate; (3) The ability to accommodate surface water run-off on-site up to the critical 1 in 100 year event plus an appropriate allowance for climate change, based upon the submission of drainage calculations; and (4) Responsibility for the future maintenance of drainage features.
- 14 Before development is commenced, within a phase development, there shall be submitted into and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority an Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Mitigation Strategy. The mitigation strategy shall include (1) A tree protection plan to graphically show the locations of any tree and details of root protection barriers, and protective fencing to be erected along the southeast, southwest and northwest boundaries of the application site; (2) Arboricultural impact assessment identifying what impacts might arise from the proposed works; (3) Arboricultural Method Statement to give guidance on aspects of proposed works which were identified within the Arboricultural impact assessment which provides guidance as to how works might be mitigated or compensated for; (4) Details of any special engineering works and surfacing required near trees. The approved measures of protection shall

be implemented strictly in accordance with the approved details for the duration of the construction period.

- No external artificial lighting shall be provided, within a phase of development, until there has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of a 'bat friendly' lighting scheme to ensure that artificial lighting (including any construction site lighting and compound lighting), avoids illuminating boundary features such as hedgerows and other areas of retained or created habitat. The scheme shall be implemented strictly in accordance with the approved details.
- The detailed plans and particulars to be submitted as reserved matters in relation to ecology shall include a Phase 1: Habitat Survey and Ecological Assessment in relation to each phase of development. Detail shall include a survey for reptiles on field margins. In particular the assessment shall include precise details of any mitigation measures required and measures of how any reptiles would be cleared sensitively prior to development. The mitigation measures shall be implemented strictly in accordance with the approved details before the development is first commenced.
- The detailed plans and particulars to be submitted as reserved matters in relation to appearance shall include details of the materials to be used in the external elevations and roofs of the proposed buildings. The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved details, which shall be retained for the lifetime of the development.
- The detailed plans and particulars to be submitted as reserved matters in relation to landscaping shall include: (a) details of the size, species, positions and density of all trees and shrubs to be planted, which shall consist of native species, ideally of local provenance, where possible; (b) details of any mitigation measures, compensatory habitat, or wildlife corridors; (c) details of the boundary treatments, including those to individual plot boundaries; (d) the proposed means of surfacing access roads, car parking areas, roadways and the frontages of properties such as driveways and footpaths to front doors and (e) a programme of implementation. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.
- If within a period of five years beginning with the date of the planting of any tree or shrub, approved as reserved matters in relation to landscaping, that tree or shrub, or any tree or shrub that is planted in replacement of it, is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, or becomes in the opinion of the Borough Council seriously damaged or defective, another tree or shrub of

the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place.

- 20 Development must not commence, within a phase development, until the following has been complied with: Site Characterisation: An assessment of the nature and extent of any potential contamination has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This assessment must be undertaken by a competent person, and shall assess any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. Moreover, it must include; a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination and; and assessment of the potential risks to: human health, property, adjoining land, controlled waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments. Submission of Remediation Scheme: Where required, a detailed remediation scheme (to bring the condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to critical receptors) should be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s), and a timetable of works and site management procedures.
- In the event that remediation is required to render the development suitable for use, the agreed remediation scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved timetable of works. Prior to occupation of any building(s) a Verification Report (That demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out) must be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority and once the Local Planning Authority has identified the part of the site affected by the unexpected contamination development must be halted on that part of the site. An Assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements above, and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme, together with a timetable for its implementation and verification reporting, must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- From the date of first occupation every property built on the site with one or more dedicated vehicle parking spaces and/ or a garage shall be provided with access to an electric vehicle (EV) charge point. Charge points must have a minimum power rating output of 7kW on a dedicated circuit, capable of providing a safe overnight charge to an electric vehicle.

All EV charging points shall meet relevant safety and accessibility requirements and be clearly marked with their purpose; which should be drawn to the attention of new residents in their new home welcome pack / travel planning advice.

Reasons

- To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. The application is expressed to be in outline only in accordance with Article 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)(England) Order 2015.
- To comply with the requirements of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
- 3. To enable the site to be developed in a phased manner
- To ensure a satisfactory development in accordance with the aims of Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014
- In the interest of highway safety and in accordance with Policy LPD61.
- To ensure an adequate form of development in the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy LPD35.
- 7 To ensure an adequate form of development in the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy LPD35.
- To ensure an adequate form of development in the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy LPD35.
- In the interest of Highway Safety and in accordance with Policy LPD61.
- To ensure an adequate form of development in the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy LPD35.
- To ensure an adequate form of development in the interests of highway safety in accordance with Policy LPD35.
- To protect the residential amenity of the area in accordance with the aims of Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).

- To prevent the increased risk of flooding; to improve and protect water quality; to improve habitat and amenity; to ensure the future maintenance of the sustainable drainage structures; and to protect the water environment from pollution, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policies 1 and 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy Submission Documents.
- To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity and the landscape in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014), and LPD18.
- To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling (September 2014).
- To minimise any potential impacts on biodiversity in accordance with Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling (September 2014), and LPD18.
- To ensure a satisfactory development in accordance with the aims of Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014) and Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).
- To ensure that the landscaping of the proposed development accords with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014)
- To ensure a satisfactory development, in accordance with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough
- To ensure that practicable and effective measures are taken to treat, contain or control any contamination and to protect controlled waters in accordance with the aims of LPD7.
- To ensure that practicable and effective measures are taken to treat, contain or control any contamination and to protect controlled waters in accordance with the aims of LPD7.
- To ensure that practicable and effective measures are taken to treat, contain or control any contamination and to protect controlled waters in accordance with the aims of LPD7.
- 23 In the interest of sustainable travel

Notes to Applicant

The applicant should note that notwithstanding any planning permission that if any highway forming part of the development is to be adopted by the Highways Authority. The new roads and any highway drainage will be required to comply with the Nottinghamshire County Council's current highway design guidance and specification for roadworks.

It is strongly recommended that the developer contact the Highway Authority at an early stage to clarify the codes etc. with which compliance will be required in the particular circumstance, and it is essential that design calculations and detailed construction drawings for the proposed works are submitted to and approved by the County Council (or District Council) in writing before any work commences on site.

In order to carry out the off-site works required you will be undertaking work in the public highway which is land subject to the provisions of the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and therefore land over which you have no control. In order to undertake the works you will need to enter into an agreement under Section 278 of the Act.All correspondence with the Highway Authority should be addressed to: TBH - NCC (Highways Development Control) (Floor 8), Nottinghamshire County Council, County Hall, Loughborough Road, West Bridgford, Nottingham, NG2 7QP.

The Environment Agency advises that surface water run-off should be controlled as near to its source as possible through a sustainable drainage approach to surface water management. Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) are an approach to managing surface water run-off which seeks to mimic natural drainage systems and retain water on-site, as opposed to traditional drainage approaches which involve piping water off-site as quickly as possible.

The applicant is advised that all planning permissions granted on or after 16th October 2015 may be subject to the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). Full details of CIL are available on the Council's website. The proposed development has been assessed and it is the Council's view that CIL IS PAYABLE on the development hereby approved. The actual amount of CIL payable will be calculated when a decision is made on the subsequent reserved matters application.

Planning Statement - The Borough Council has worked positively and proactively with the applicant in accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021). Negotiations have taken place during the determination of the application to address adverse impacts identified by officers. Amendments have subsequently been made to the proposal, addressing the identified adverse impacts,

thereby resulting in a more acceptable scheme and a favourable recommendation.

No removal of hedgerows, trees or shrubs which have the potential to support nesting birds shall take place between 1st March and 31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful, detailed check for active birds' nests immediately before clearance works commence and provided written confirmation that no birds will be harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting bird interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be submitted to the local planning authority. As you will be aware all birds, their nests and eggs (except pest species) are protected by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (and as amended).

Advice regarding travel plans can be obtained from the Travel Plans Officer at Nottinghamshire County Council, County Hall, Loughborough Road, West Bridgford, Nottingham.

The proposed development lies within a coal mining area which may contain unrecorded coal mining related hazards. If any coal mining feature is encountered during development, this should be reported immediately to The Coal Authority on 0845 762 6848. Further information is also available on The Coal Authority website at www.coal.decc.gov.uk.Property specific summary information on past, current and future coal mining activity can be obtained from The Coal Authority's Property Search Service on 0845 762 6848 or at www.groundstability.com.

Informative: The developer is encouraged to consider upgrading the EV charging facilities to incorporate mode 3 charging capability as this will help future proof the development and improve its sustainability. A suitable electrical socket can be provided to allow 'Mode 3' charging of an electric vehicle, allowing Smart charging of electric vehicles.

All electrical circuits/installations shall comply with the electrical requirements of BS7671:2008 as well as conform to the IET code of practice on Electrical Vehicle Charging Equipment installation (2015).

Reasons for Decision

The development has been considered in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014) The Local Planning Document Part 2 where appropriate. In the opinion of the Borough Council, the proposed development largely accords with the relevant policies of these frameworks and plans. Where the development conflicts with the Development Plan, it is the opinion of the Borough Council that other material considerations indicate that permission should be granted. The benefits of granting the proposal outweigh any adverse impact of departing from the Development Plan.

18 APPEAL REF: APP/N3020/W/24/3338360 - 313 MAPPERLEY PLAINS, ARNOLD

Councillor Allan re-joined the meeting and re-took the Chair.

Proposed redevelopment comprising 4 dwellings.

RESOLVED:

To note the information.

19 APPEAL REF: APP/N3020/W/23/333618289 - SHEEPWALK LANE, RAVENSHEAD

Development of one detached dwelling.

RESOLVED:

To note the information.

20 FUTURE PLANNING APPLICATIONS

RESOLVED:

To note the information.

21 PLANNING DELEGATION PANEL ACTION SHEETS

RESOLVED:

To note the information.

22 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT

None.

The meeting finished at 6.40 pm

Signed by Chair: Date: